
EWING MARION KAUFFMAN SCHOOL, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING PACKET

April 13, 2022

CONTENTS

Meeting Agenda 2

Meeting Minutes: March 9, 2022 3

Treasurer’s Report 8

Capital Improvements Schedule 27

MEETING INFORMATION

Ewing Marion Kauffman School
Wednesday, April 16th, 2022

Board of Directors Meeting (8:30am CT)

Meeting will be held at the Kauffman School
6401 Paseo Blvd

Kansas City, MO 64131

Packet Page 1



EWING MARION KAUFFMAN SCHOOL, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - MEETING AGENDA

MEETING INFORMATION

Ewing Marion Kauffman School
Wednesday, April 13th, 2022

Board of Directors Meeting (8:30am CT)

Meeting will be held at the Kauffman School
6401 Paseo Blvd

Kansas City, MO 64131

AGENDA

● CALL TO ORDER
○ Welcome guests
○ Review and discuss meeting agenda
○ Action: Meeting minutes (3.9.2022)
○ Board Chair Comments

● LEADERSHIP REPORT
● FINANCE

○ Action: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report
○ Action: Approval of Capital Improvements Request

● COMMUNITY FORUM
○ The Board will hear comments from community members regarding items on the agenda or other

issues that should be brought to the Board’s attention. Individual comments are limited to three
minutes. It is anticipated the time allotted for the community forum will be no longer than fifteen
minutes, unless time is extended by the Board Chair. Individuals who do not have an opportunity to
speak during the allotted time will be given first opportunity at the next regularly scheduled Board of
Directors meeting.

● CLOSED SESSION / EXECUTIVE SESSION
○ Close meeting pursuant to R.S.Mo 610.021(6) - discussion of a student matter, R.S.Mo 610.021(1) -

discussion of legal matters and R.S.Mo 610.021(3) - discussion of a personnel matter
● ADJOURN

FUTURE MEETINGS

● Committee Meetings: Monday, May 9th (5:00 pm CST)
● Board Meeting: Wednesday, May 11th (8:30 am CST)

Packet Page 2



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

EWING MARION KAUFFMAN SCHOOL, INC.

March 10, 2022

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Ewing Marion Kauffman School, Inc., a Missouri nonprofit corporation exempt from

federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code § 501(c)(3), was held at its headquarters in Kansas City, Missouri on March 10, 2022,

pursuant to public notice provided at least 24 hours in advance. The meeting was held using audio-video technology with a link

provided in the notice and with opportunities for all to hear and be heard and see and be seen.

Participating via Zoom technology such that all could hear and be heard and had the option of seeing and being seen were

Tracy McFerrin, Chair, Kristin Bechard, Juan Rangel, and Corey Scholes. Maurice Watson joined the meeting in progress as

indicated below.

Also participating from the School such that all could hear and be heard and have the option of seeing and being seen

were Hannah Lofthus, President and Chief Executive Officer; and John Tyler, Secretary and General Counsel.

No one from the community was present.

Ms. McFerrin chaired the meeting and Mr. Tyler served as secretary. Ms. McFerrin called the meeting to order at 8:34 am,

welcomed those in attendance, previewed the agenda, and expressed her appreciation for all

After discussion and motion duly made (Scholes) and seconded (Bechard), the board unanimously approved minutes from

the meetings of February 16, 2022.

Board Chair Comments

Ms. McFerrin reported on her, Ms. Scholes’, and Mr. Rangel’s attendance of a program hosted by SchoolSmart KC about

governing public schools, including that schools are wrestling with similar issues around equity and student achievement. Also, the

School will be participating in Kansas City’s first “school board member draft” hosted by Blaque KC. Ms. Scholes described the

process for the draft. Discussion occurred throughout.

Leadership Report

Ms. Lofthus reported on the School’s celebration of Black History Month and student activities throughout. She described

a program with TalkSpace and then reported on alumnus Khalil Shelton’s published article on the DeBruce Foundation website

about the summer bridge program.

Ms. Lofthus updated those present about strategic planning progress, including reports from interviews and surveys

conducted by Attuned. The report from fall/winter 2021 is a summary of the School at this moment in time after remote learning

during a pandemic and after incorporating DEI changes; it is not historic. She discussed comparative studies about declines in

student achievement generally. She summarized results, including positive findings and current challenges. Discussion followed,

including that the School’s higher pre-pandemic performance and nearly universal test taking rates position for larger relative

decreases.

Mr. Watson joined the meeting.

Packet Page 3



Ms. Lofthus continued by describing the effects of key 2020-2021 adjustments, including the positive and negative effects

of increased professional development for DEIA and CRT, adjustments to the merit/demerit system, and sustainability by reducing

professional development hours and time in school. Discussion occurred throughout, including more student behavior problems,

perceptions about safety relative to academic demands and increased withdrawals, heightened degrees of emotional responses

among parents and how that has effected

Ms. Lofthus shared lessons from the past year and how those lessons are informing preparation for the coming year.

Discussion followed, including board appreciation for the thoughtfulness of this analysis, the need for patience and persistence as

improvements take time (and more time than the decreases), support for prioritizing focus to facilitate return to pre-pandemic

performance even while recognizing that bandwidth limits the ability to focus on every possible area, why and how academic

performance and preparation are and should be the first priority for the School, teacher retention and attraction challenges

generally across the area and society, changes to make going forward based on lessons learned and results, potential

consequences of some of those changes involving a return to prior practices that had been subject to critique, and Board support

for being thought partners with Ms. Lofthus going forward.

Governance Report

Ms. Lofthus reported a new lactation accommodation law in effect in Missouri, DESE’s development of a model policy that

would comply with the new law, and management’s recommendation that Board approve that policy.

After discussion and upon motion made (Scholes) and seconded (Bechard), the board unanimously approved the lactation

accommodation policy attached as Exhibit A.

Finance Report

Ms. Lofthus reported that Apple Bus is being acquired and that the schools with which the Kauffman School has

collaborated for bus services plan to undertake a request for proposal process.

After discussion and upon motion made (Watson) and seconded (Rangel), the board unanimously approved delegating

authority to management to engage with the collaborating schools in conducting a request for proposal for transportation

services, negotiate the terms of that RFP, negotiate with finalist, and enter an agreement upon satisfactory conclusion of those

negotiations, subject to board approval of the final amount of the contract that will be the School’s responsibility.

Closed Session

Pursuant to the published agenda, a motion was made (Watson) and seconded (Bechard) to go into executive session as allowed

by RSMO 620.021(1), (3), and (6) regarding legal, personnel, and students to discuss matters thereunder. Pursuant to a roll call

vote, the following directors voted to approve the motion (Bechard, McFerrin, Rangel, Scholes, and Watson) with no directors

opposing or abstaining. The meeting entered closed session at 9:40 am.

A motion was made (Bechard) and seconded (Rangel) to leave the executive session and re-open the meeting. Pursuant to a roll

call vote, the following directors voted to approve the motion (Bechard, McFerrin, Rangel, and Watson) with no directors opposing

or abstaining. The meeting adjourned from closed session 10:20 am.

Ms. McFerrin expressed her appreciation to and for all involved with the meeting.

Packet Page 4



Community Forum

With no one from the community present, there was no community forum.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:21 am.

John Tyler, Secretary

Packet Page 5



Exhibit A

Lactation Accommodation Policy

The Kauffman School acknowledges the lactations accommodation law in Section 160.995, RSMo, and therefore provides

breastfeeding employees, teachers, and students the following lactation accommodations:

Reasonable Time to Express Milk at Work

Employees, teachers, and students shall be provided a minimum of three opportunities during a school day, at intervals agreed

upon by the district and the individual (usual planning, break and meal periods should be utilized for expressing milk when

possible), to accommodate an employee's, teacher's, or student's need to express breast milk, breastfeed a child, or address other

needs relating to breastfeeding.  Employees, teachers, and students shall be provided reasonable time to express milk while at

work for at least one year following the child’s birth.

A Private Area for Milk Expression

Employees, teachers, and students will be provided with a private place, other than a bathroom, in each public school building,

that is shielded from view and free from intrusion from co-workers or other students and the public. The room shall be a

designated space for lactation and for the exclusive use of women to express breast milk or breastfeed a child.

The room will:

● Be in close proximity to the employee’s work station or the teacher or student’s classrooms when possible,

● Have a door equipped with a functional lock or, if this is not possible, the room will have a sign advising that the room or

location is in use and not accessible to other employees, students, or the public,

● Be well lit and ventilated,

● Ensure privacy by covering any windows with a curtain, blind, or other covering,

● Contain, at minimum, a chair and a small table, counter, or other flat surface, and

● Include an electrical outlet and be in close proximity to a sink with running water and a refrigerator for breast milk storage

No employee, teacher, or student shall be discriminated against for breastfeeding or expressing milk during the school day, and

reasonable efforts will be made to assist users of this policy in meeting their infant feeding goals while at work or school.

Any act found to be intentional that invades a nursing mother’s privacy shall be treated as a disciplinary offense and reported to

the building administrator.

District Responsibilities

The Kauffman School will:

● Maintain the cleanliness of the room or location set aside for the use of those expressing breast milk.

● Notify employees and students returning to school following the birth of a child of their rights under Section 160.995,

RSMo. This notice may either be provided individually to affected employees and students or to all employees and

students generally through posting in a central location.

Employee/Teacher/Student Responsibilities

Breastfeeding employees, teachers, and students utilizing lactation support services will:

Packet Page 6



● Give school administrators advance notice of the need for lactation accommodations, preferably prior to their return to

school following the birth of the child. This will allow school administrators the opportunity to establish a location and

work out scheduling issues.

● Maintain the designated area by wiping down surfaces with antibacterial wipes so the area is clean for the next user.

● Ensure the safekeeping of expressed breast milk stored in any refrigerator on the premises.  Breast milk can be stored in a

general school building refrigerator, in a refrigerator provided in the lactation room, or in the employee’s personal cooler.

Packet Page 7



Treasurer’s Report

Packet Page 8



Packet Page 9



Packet Page 10



Packet Page 11



Packet Page 12



Packet Page 13



Packet Page 14



Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Capital Improvements Table

Packet Page 27


